
Page 1 of 1 
 

REGULAR MEETING – January 18, 2022                                                                                  7:00 P.M. 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

Roll Call 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

VOTING ITEMS 

1. Vice-Mayor Election: Per Statham City Charter, Section 2.09, The council at the first 

regular meeting, after the newly elected councilmen have taken office following each 

election, shall elect from its membership a vice-mayor for a term of two years. In the event 

that no decision is reached at such first regular meeting, the council shall, within five ballots 

to be taken within ten days following such meeting, elect the vice-mayor, otherwise the 

councilman who received the highest number of votes when he was last elected shall 

become vice-mayor. The vice-mayor shall perform the duties of the mayor during his 

absence or inability to act and shall fill out any unexpired term in the office of mayor, in 

which case a new vice-mayor shall be elected by majority vote of the council. 

 

2. Well Development Project Change Orders/Proposals for Ground-Water Services, 

Inc.: To approve additional proposals from Ground-Water Services, Inc. for the well 

development project. Council approved a FY22 budget of $425,000 for the well 

development project; Contractor Ground-Water Services has been overseeing this project 

as previously approved by City Council. While the project moves forward and additional 

proposals are presented, City staff is requesting approval of $50,000 to Ground-Water 

Services, Inc. to complete the project plus contingency for a total of $70,000 for unexpected 

project costs. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to the attorney-client privilege and as provided by Georgia Code 

section 50-14-2(1), a meeting otherwise required to be open was closed to the public in order to consult and 

meet with legal counsel pertaining to pending or potential litigation, settlement, claims, administrative 

proceedings, or other judicial actions brought or to be brought by or against the agency or any officer or 

employee or in which the agency or any officer or employee may be directly involved and the matter 

discussed was pending or potential litigation.  

MINUTE APPROVAL 

1. January 6, 2022 Work Session Minutes 

2. January 6, 2022 Special Called Meeting Minutes 

ADJOURN 

CITY OF STATHAM 
AGENDA 
Statham City Hall 
327 Jefferson Street, Statham, GA 30666 

 













DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 1 
 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING – January 6, 2022                                                                                  6:45 P.M. 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

Mayor Piper called the meeting to order at 7:28 p.m. 

Present: Mayor Joe Piper and Councilmembers Venable, Thrasher, Patterson, Penn and Krause 

Also present: City Clerk, Sandra Bennett and City Attorney Jody Campbell 

VOTING ITEMS 

 

1. Well Development Project Change Orders/Proposals for Ground-Water Services, 

Inc.: To approve additional proposals from Ground-Water Services, Inc. for the well 

development project. Council approved a FY22 budget of $425,000 for the well 

development project; Contractor Ground-Water Services has been overseeing this project 

as previously approved by City Council. While the project moves forward and additional 

proposals are presented, City staff is requesting approval of $50,000 to Ground-Water 

Services, Inc. to complete the project plus contingency for a total of $70,000 for unexpected 

project costs. 

 
Councilmember Venable made a motion to approve $50,000 for the change order for Ground-
Water Services. There was no second to the motion, and the motion died.  
 
Councilmember Patterson made a motion to table the Well Development Project change order to 
the January 18, 2022 Regular Meeting. Councilmember Penn seconded the motion, and the 
motion passed unanimously.  
 

Councilmember Venable spoke on the passing of former Councilmember Tammy Crawley and appreciated 
her service as council member to the City of Statham.  

ADJOURN 

At 7:31 p.m., Councilmember Venable made a motion to adjourn. Councilmember Patterson seconded 
the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.  

CITY OF STATHAM 
AGENDA 
Statham City Hall 
327 Jefferson Street, Statham, GA 30666 

 



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 3 
 

WORK SESSION – January 6, 2022                                                                                  6:30 P.M. 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

Mayor Piper called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 

Present: Mayor Joe Piper and Councilmembers Venable, Thrasher, Patterson, Penn and Krause 

Also present: City Clerk, Sandra Bennett and City Attorney Jody Campbell 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Piper, and all veterans and their families were thanked for their 

service.  

OATHS OF OFFICE 

1. Councilmember – Deborah Krause, four-year term. Term expires December 31, 2026. 

2. Councilmember – Lee Patterson, four-year term. Term expires December 31, 2026. 

3. Councilmember – Scott Penn, four-year term. Term expires December 31, 2026.  

 
Mayor Piper administered the Oaths of Office to Councilmembers Lee Patterson, Debi Krause and Scott 
Penn.  

REPORTS  

1. Finance Department 

2. Police Department 

3. Public Works Department 

 
Reports were presented to Council with the December 2021 financials, police statistics and current activity 
of the public works department.   

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Well Development Project Change Orders/Proposals for Ground-Water Services, 

Inc.: To approve additional proposals from Ground-Water Services, Inc. for the well 

development project. Council approved a FY22 budget of $425,000 for the well 

development project; Contractor Ground-Water Services has been overseeing this project 

as previously approved by City Council. While the project moves forward and additional 

proposals are presented, City staff is requesting approval of $50,000 to Ground-Water 

Services, Inc. to complete the project plus contingency for a total of $70,000 for unexpected 

project costs. 

CITY OF STATHAM 
MINUTES 
Statham City Hall 
327 Jefferson Street, Statham, GA 30666 

 



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Mayor Piper updated the Council on the latest findings from Ground-Water Services 
dated in a report dated December 28, 2021. The Mayor explained that due to information 
received from citizens, they had not disturbed any area near the large oak tree for reasons 
of a possible burial ground. He reported that Dan Harman of Ground-Water Services 
would like to move forward with the well exploration at this site, and that he is looking 
for a 4 NTU (measurement of turbidity). If that measurement cannot be reached, 
abandonment of the site should be considered. Mayor Piper noted the cost of water 
purchased from Barrow County and the City of Winder last month was approximately 
$21,000, however, this is amount is lower than what is spent over the warmer months. 
The Mayor would like to continue exploring this well site pending the next stage testing.  
 
Councilmember Venable asked about dumping that allegedly occurred on this site years 
ago. Mayor Piper stated the samples from four well sites in the area do not show burying 
or dumping occurred at any of those locations.  
 
Councilmember Krause also inquired about potential dumping, and why this location was 
selected to begin with. Mayor Piper explained the process for searching for potential well 
sites, and the most favorable location was this current site, in which the City already owns.   
 
Councilmember Thrasher asked why this was brought up again after it was voted down 
last month, and Mayor Piper explained this voting item was not an ordinance nor a 
resolution, but a professional service, and could be brought back to the table as needed. 
Attorney Campbell agreed that he was correct in his statement.  
 
Councilmember Patterson asked the amount that is needed to complete the next testing 
stages, and Mayor Piper answered $14,300.  
 

2. City Committees: Per City of Statham Code of Ordinances Section 2-46, the Mayor shall 

appointment the standing committees, and are recommended for approval. Each term of 

office is for one (1) year and will expire December 31, 2022.   

 

Mayor Piper presented the 2022 Committees and Chairpersons. He also stated the Tree 
and Beautification Committee is a 2-year term and will not be changed at this time.  

CITIZEN INPUT 

Betty Lyle stated in 1958, the well exploration site that is being discussed was a landfill. She would 
like to see the water plant reopened; to dredge the lake and hire a new operator for the plant. 
She does not like that this is being brought up again after it was voted no last month.  
 
Dwight McCormic voiced his concerns that the information presented to Council tonight was held 
from the Council at the December meeting and voted on without having the reports. Mayor Piper 
informed Mr. McCormic that the information was provided to council at the last meeting with 
the exception of one additional report that was given after the December council meetings. Mr. 
McCormic would like for the City to dredge the lake and sell the dirt to GDOT (Georgia 



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Department of Transportation) for the new overpasses and bridges along Highway 316. Mayor 
Piper stated that GDOT would not be interested in the muck and sludge that would be dredged 
from the lake. Councilmember Thrasher stated she was unaware of bridges and overpasses that 
are planned to be built in Statham. Mr. McCormic stated that he assumed that Highway 211 will 
get a bridge and speculates what other crossings will be changed. Mayor Piper stated that none 
of this has been decided, and the conversation is getting off topic.  

MINUTE APPROVAL 

1. December 21, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

Councilmember Venable made a motion to approve the minutes from the December 21, 2021 
Regular Meeting with corrections to the spelling of McCormic. Councilmember Thrasher 
seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.   

ADJOURN 

At 7:28 p.m., Councilmember Krause made a motion to adjourn. Councilmember Thrasher 
seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously.  

 




